1 report that was filled out on July 11, 20137 1 Q Do you keep that report and usg it in the
2 A Ttis. 2 ordinaty course of your duties?
3 MR. COOPER: Move to admit State's Proposed 3 A 1do
4 Fxhibit 9, Your Honor, 4 MR. COOPER: At this point, Your Honor, Twould
5 MS. BONAVENTURE: No objection, 5 move to admit the State's Propesed Exhibit 107
] THE COURT: State's Exhibit 9 is admitted. 6 MS, BONAVENTURE: No objection.
7 (Whereupon, State's Exhibit 9 was 7 THE COURT: Staie's Proposed 10 is admitted,
8 admitted into evidence.) . 8 (Whereupon, State’s Exhibit 10 was
8 BY MR.COOPER: 9 admitted into evidence.)
10 Q Again, this is 2 similar report that we were 10 MS. HOJJAT: Your Honor, we would just maintain
11 just looking at? 11  the previous objection that had been made.
12 A Yes. 12 THE COURT: The previous objection is noted for
13 Q And the address he put down is at Main and 13 therecord.
14  Wyoming? 14 MS, HOJJAT: Thank you.
i5 A Yes. 15 MR, COOPER: Permission to approach, Your Honor.
16 Q Now, when you were, I guess, meeting with him in 16 THE COURT: You may.
17 July what, if anything, did you talk to him about? 17 BY MR.COOPER:
18 A His noncompliance, the fact that he was not 18 Q So on the upper top portion it says "refosed.”
19 attending counseling. In fact, I wasn't able £o see him 19 Do you see that?
20 at his house, his cross streets, that he was not paying 20 - A Yes
21 his fees, that he wasn't working. It had been where time 21 Q What does that mean?
22 had elapsed to the point where we werc coming to a point 22 A Refused UA, meaning that he refused to have a
23  where ] have to file charges on him for being 23 urinalysis so I could test for controlled substances,
24 nonconmpliant. 24 Q Would that have happened on the 15th day of
25 Q And did you do that in July of 20137 25 Augyst?
: 100 102
1 A I arrested him in July. 1 believe it was July 1 A Yes
2 1l¢h that Tarrested him. 2 Q Sowalk me through your discussion with the
3 Q And what were the basis of the charges? 3 defendant on the 15th day of August when he reported to
4 A Everything 1 just stated; the violation 4 your office.
§ concerning failure to meet the curfew, failure to pay 5 A Right away when he cores in, T ask, Are you
6 fees, curfew violation. Anything that he was violating 6 ready to givea UA? And he's like, I'm not deing it. I
7 in the agreement I was charging him. 7 don't knew his exact words but he refused.
8 Q So subsequent to that are you aware if those 8 So at that point I took him upstairs to my
9 charges were denied by the District Attorney's Office? 9 supervisor's office for noncompliance. He was not
10 A They were denied. 10 listening to me. He can deal with my sergeant. And even
11 Q Now, did you see him again after July? 11 my sergeant couldn't get across to him, And at that
12 A Isaw him in August, 12 point he still refused to 2 CA -~
13 MR. COOPER: Permission to approach the witness, 13 Q Let me stop you there, So did you actually go
14 Your Homor. 14 in the office of Officer Zana as well?
15 THE COURT: Younay. 15 A Iwasin the office.
16 BY MR. COOPER: 16 Q And what did the defendant say at that point?
17 Q Ma'am, [ am now showing what has been marked as 17 A 1was preity much out of the conversation. It
18  State's Proposed Exhibit 10; do you recognize that? 18 was Sergeant Zana and McNeill talking,
19 A Idoe. 19 Q Well, what did you overhear the defendant say?
20 Q How do yourecognize that? 20 MS. BONAVENTURE: Your Honor, I am going to
21 A This is a monthly report dated 8/16/13 filled 21 object as hearsay at this point.
22  out by Steve McNeill. 22 THE CQURT: The question was what did you
23 Q And is that a true and correct copy of your 23 overhear the defendant say. You have an objection with
24  report that is contained in your file? 24 regard to what the defendant said?
25 A Ttis? 25 MS. BONAVENTURE: Yes, Your Honor, because it is
101 103
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1 hearsay at this point in time. They have witness Officer 1 Q What's the "no one time weekly OV" mean?

2 Zana, and Officer Zana will be here to testify as to 2 A That would be that we would want him to come

3 exactly the conversation he had. 3 into the office once a week to report since he was

4 THE COURT: Overruled. 4 homeless and we could not track him down at his

5 MR. COOPER: You can say i, 5 residence. He refused to come in one time a weck for an

6 THE WITNESS: Okay. The language was something | 6 office visit, which would be "OV."

7 like, I will not be kept like a dog on a leash. Irefuse 7 Q And "not registering everything 30 days," what

8 UAs. Iwill refuse the curfew hours. Iwill sleep 8 does that mean?

9 wherever I want 1o sieep. You have no authority over me 9 A Sergeant Zana brought that up. At that time I
10 basically. 10 was unaware, when you are homeless you have to register
11 And, specifically, I remember he said that he 11 every 30 days -

12  was doing Parole and Probation a favor by showing up at 12 MS. HOJAT: Your Honor, I am going object to as
13  least one a month to drop off a monthly report. Angd that 13 hearsay.
14 was it 14 THE COURT: Overruled.
15 BY MR.COOPER: 15 THE WITNESS: Sergeant Zana was saying that
16 Q Now, while he was in Officer Zana's office with 16 every 30 -
17 you, did you attempt to give him any additional 17 THE COURT; Hold on. Before you weren't saying
18 requirements on his probation period? 18 what Officer Zana said.
19 A At that time I felt there was no point to direct 19 MR. COOPER: I can clarify that, Your Honor.
20 him anymore because he flat ot refused to do everything 20 THE COURT: Please.
21  and be compliant with his Supervision Agreement. 21 BY MR.COOPER;
22 Q Now, referring your atiention back to that on 22 Q What is your understanding of when a homeless
23 the screen. Is that what you are referring to when you 23 person has to register?
24 say he is noncompliant? 24 A Every 30 days.
25 A Right. 25 Q And it looks like on the right-hand side here it
104 106

1 Q So what does it mean by "no UA™ 1 says "Sergeant Zana office." Is that what you were

2 A He did not produce and he refused to doa 2 referring to when --

3 wrinalysis test. 3 A We were in his office when we discussed those

4 @ What does it mean by "no curfew"? 4 things.

5 A He refused to be placed on a curfew. He ' 5 Q Now, at some point after August of 2013, did you

& verbally said, I am not going fo be placed on a curfew. 6 have contact with the defendant again?

7 Q This was -- well, letme back up. So was it 7 A Not physical contact, no.

8 technically the third curfew? 8 G What type of contact did you have?

9 A LikeI said, I adjusted the curfew from 5:00 fo 9 A Sergeant Zana did show me a letter addressed
10 8:00. Again, I was going to say, Hey, man, you'reona 10 from Steve McNeill. The letter was addressed to Captain
11 curfew, but he said, I am not going to be placed on a 11 Sawyer who is in charge of Parole and Probation, It was
12 curfew. 12 a cease and desist letter.

13 Q So in March, I think you said he was placed on a 13 Q Essentially, what did that letter say?

14 curfew? 14 A Basically, it said that Parole and Probation has
15 A Right. 16 no authority over him and to stop contacting him.

16 Q And he cameback to you at some other point and 16 Q After August of 2013, did you see the defendant
17 said that he needed more time? 17 again in Probation and Parole at the office?

18 A Yeah, I give him an extension. Ti's hot ouf or 18 A Ididnot.

49 whatever, and he wanted me to push it back and I did 19 Q Did he contact you again after August 2013?

20 agreeto give him the 8:00 p.m. curfew. 20 A He did not,

21 Q In August were you basically sayliilg you were on 21 Q Between August 2013 and March 2014, did you have
292 g curfew or were you trying to give him a new curfew? 22  any contact with the defendant?

23 A Continuing saying you are still on a curfew. 23 A No

24 Q And is that when he said no? 24 Q Between that time period, did you attempt to

25 A Yes. 25 contact the defendant?
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1 A Yes. 1 THE COURT: The objection is sustained as to the
2 Q And can you describe to the ladies and gentlemen 2 form of the question.
' 3 of the jury what attempts you made, 3 You may proceed.
4 A Phone calls and more home attempts at Main and 4 MR, COOPER: Thank you, Your Honor.
5 Wryoming, ) 5 BY MR. COOPER;
6 Q And were you able to find him at Main and 6 Q 1 think you said you remember that you testified
7 Wyoming? 7 ataprevious hearing?
8 A Iwasnot. 8 A 1did
9 Q And at this point he was still required fo come 9 Q Andduring that previous hearing, do you recall
10 in regularly once a month? 10 if you testified the exact same way as you testified
1 A Yes. 11 today?
12 Q And between August and March that would have 12 A 1 did not.
43 been about nine months? 13 Q Do you remember anything that you may have
14 A Correct, 14 isstated at that previous hearing?
15 Q Nine months of no contact? 15 A Yes. I definitely got confused on dates.
16 A No contact. 16 @ What do you mean by that?
17 Q Now, let me ask you a question, We talked about 17 A When his lifetime supervision started, when I
18 lifetime supervision. Does lifetime supervision actually 18 started supervising him, things of that nature.
19 mean lifetime? 19 Q Do you recall what date you said you started
20 A No. After ten years —- 20 supervising him in that previous hearing?
21. MS. HOJJAT: Objection. Relevance. 21 A I believe I misspoke and said March 2012,
22 THE COURT: Mr. Cooper. 22 Q Were you even a probation officer in March of
23 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, this goes directly to 23 20127
24 the charge. 1don't understand how it is not relevant. 24 A 1 wasnot.
25 - THE COURT: T need more explanation of how it 25 Q And when did you actually become a probation
108 110
1 goes fo this particular charge. 1 officer?
2 MR. COOPER: May we approach Your Honor? 2 A Well, in April 2012 I started the academy.
3 THE COURT: You may. 3 Q Did you remember anything else that you might
4 (Discussion held al the bench.) 4 have misspoke on or anything like that? '
5 THE COURT: The objection is sustained. Youmay | 5 A I believe I was asked a question about maps, if
8 not answer the question, And I will ask counsel {0 6 he had drawn any maps, and at that point I didn't have my
7 proceed. ‘ 7 monthly reports in front of me to say for certain that he
8 MR. COOPER: Court's brief indulgence. 8 had, but now that I did go back and look at the monthly
9 BY MR. COOPER: 9 reports he did draw me maps.
10 Q All the different violations we're talking 10 Q Those would have been the maps that you would
11 about, the curfew and the not reporting, that all 14 have used in order to try to find him?
12 happened here in Clark County, Nevada? 12 A Yes. Itake those out in the field with me and
13 A Itdid. 13  tried to look for the offender using those maps.
14 Q Do you recall testifying in May ata previous 14 MR. COOPER: I will pass the witness, Your
15 hearing in this matter? 15 Honor,
16 A 1do. 16 THE COURT: Ms. Bonaventure.
17 Q Andwas that your first time testifying in a 17 MS. BONAVENTURE: Thank you, Your Honor.
18 hearing like that? 18
19 A Ttwas, . _ 19 CROSS-EXAMINATION
20 Q Describe your state of mind at that point? 20 BY MS.BONAVENTURE:
21 MS. HOJJAT: Objection. Relevance. 21 Q Nice o see you again, Officer Mangan. How are
22 THE COURT: Mr. Cooper. 22  you doing today?
23 MR. COOPER: Can we approach, Your Honor? 23 A I'm really good, Thank you.
24 THE COURT: Sure. 24 Q Good. So Mr. Cooper started getting into this
25 (Discussion held at the bench.) 25 when be first started tatking to you, basically, your
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1 experience, right? 1 know like if he's a tier 1, tier 2, tier 3 being 2 high
2 A Experience in what? 2 risk--
3 Q I'msomry. Asa probation officer in general. 3 MS, HOJJAT: Objection,
4 A Okay. 4 MS. BONAVENTURE: We are going to withdraw that
5 Q Letme just reask the question. 5 objection, Your Honor.
6 A Okay. 6 BY MS.BONAVENTURE:
7 Q So you said that you were hired April 20127 7 Q How many hours of training do you think you
8 A Yes. 8 received in specialized training for this spectal unit?
9 Q Okay. That's when you were hired. And you said 9 A 1could not even approximate that. I do not
10 you did go to an academy? 10 know.
1 A 1did. 11 Q So then you went from your field training --
12 Q How long was that academy? 12 A Yes.
13 A 1graduated September 19, 2012. 13 Q -- to getting assigned cases?
14 Q Congratulations. 14 A Right.
15 A Thank you. 15 Q So when you were in field training, were you
16 Q After you did the academy, you did say that you 16 working on your own Cases or Were you working with the
17  did field officer training; is that right? 17 supervising officer?
18 A Field training, yes. 18 A 1had my own caseload and my supervisor would
19 Q And you had a senior officer with you? 19 watch me as 1 am supervising my other officers, so it
20 A 1had several senior officers. 20 irickled down.
21 Q How long did your field training last? 21 Q So they would always be with you?
22 A I would say approximately two months, 22 A Not always but a lot of the time they were,
23 G Two months? 23 @ So you told me that you were off of your field
24 A Approximately, yes. 24 training about January 20137
25 Q So it's your testimony today that by 25 A Between December and January 1 believe that
112 114
1 December 2012, you were done with your field training? 1 would bea good approximation,
2 A Tt'spossible. 1do not know the exact date. 2 Q And then earlier you did testify that in
3 Q Okay. You did testify that you graduated from 3 March 2013 that is when you got your first group of
4 the academy in September? 4 cases?
5 A Yes. ; 5 A Yes, sex offender cases.
6 Q You did about two months of field training? 6 Q So that's when you first got your sex offender
7 A 1did. 7 cases?
8 Q So that would take us into December, maybe 8 A That's when I transferred to the sex offender
9 December/January? 9 unit in March of 2013
10 A Probably December/January. 10 Q So up until this point you were working on your
11 Q Okay. January of 20137 11 own cases with the superior, right?
12 A T would say yes. 12 A Yes. :
13 Q Now, the sex offender probation or the lifetime 13 Q Andthat was generally other kinds of felonies?
14 supervision, is that a special detail in your office? 14 A Yes. Anybody on parole and probation.
15 A Sex offender unit is a special detail within 15 Q Okay. I am following you here. So suffice it
16 Parole and Probation, 16 to say at this point you had been on your own since
17 Q Now did you receive any additional training 47 January, February and March, So this was your third
18  after your academy in order to deal with this population? 18 month kind without a field training officer to run to
19 A 1did. 19 like a field officer?
20 Q What training was that? 20 A Oh, there's always people to talk to.
2 A Tt was general training as in the rules of 21 Q Like Sergeant Zana, which we already know -
22  Jifetime supervision, It was something like -- in the 22 A Any senior officer.
23 Department of Parole and Probation we have like a 23 Q So at this point you were working up your own. -
24 thousand-foot rule, so no sex offender can live within a 24 cases though?
25  thousand feet of a school, park, stuff like that. You 25 A Twas,
113 115
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1 Q Okay perfect. Just to clarify about lifetime 1 Q Okay. So we have alrcady established that he
2 supervision, probation and parole. Now these are all 2 started lifetime supervision in 2007, correct?
3 separate things, Tight, they are separate institutions? 3 A Yes.
4 A They are separate agreements that they sign. 4 Q So by the time you became assigned as his
5 Q So lifetime supervision, earlier did you say it 5 probation officer he had basically been on probation for
6 was akind of probation and parole, but it is a 6 about five years?
7 completely different kind of supervision? 7 A Lifetime supervision?
8 A No. Iwould not say it is completely different. 8 Q Yes. 'msorry. Lifetime supervision,
9 I would say the outcome of your violation will be 9 A Yes.
10 different. If you violate your parole you are going to 10 Q Okay. So after you availed yourself of the
11 go back to the Parole Board to answer. If you violate 41 information from the notes left by the previous
12 lifetime supervision I will file charges for a new 12 supervising officers, did it ever come to your attention
13 felony, which is a new case. 13  that he was ever arrested on a prior violation for
14 Q Understood. They are separate ways of being 14 violating lifetime supervision?
45 supervised, correct. Just like you had to get 15 A Idonotrecall
16 specialized training to do lifetime supervision versus 16 Q He did actually, and I'm sure you know this
17 probation versus parole; is that correct? 17 because 1 know you said that you went through the notes,
18 A 1 don't supervise them really any differently. 418 that he did not become homeless up until I believe it was
19 Q Okay. : 19 February of 2013, correct?
20 A 1 would not say that there is very much 20 A Iwould say January.
21 variation. 21 Q January?
22 Q So you arc assigned to that specialized unit in 22 A T would say January.
23 March, that is when you first started getting your cases? 23 Q So based upon the notes left to you by the prior
24 A March 2013. 24  lifetime supervision officer, he was able to maintain a
25 Q So are you still currently assigned to that 25  stable residence for that prior time period?
116 118
1 detail? 1 A He had a residence. 1 do not know how stable it
2 A Tam. 2 was.
3 Q So previously to becoming Mr. McNeill's lifetime | 3 Q So he had been reporting the exact same
4 supervision officer, he did have other lifetime 4 tesidence for the last five years?
5 supervision officers before you, correct? 5 A Oh,I don't know about that. I don't know if it
6 A He did. _‘ 8 was the last five years. 1 just know as Ilook back he
7 Q He had four lifetime supervision officers to be 7 was staying at a Casino Center address. That's alli
8 cxact before you? 8 know.
9 A Okay. 9 Q So that's the only address you remember from the
10 Q Ts that not correct? 10 prior note?
11 A I did not look back or count. 1 canonly gooff |11 A Yes. From the file, yes.
12 of what you say. ' 12 Q And reviewing those prior case notes, | am sure
13 Q Okay. So when you received this case were you 13 you are aware that he was employed previously to you
14 inreceipt of a file? 14 becoming his supervising officer?
15 A Iwas, 15 A I know at one time he did report employment, I
16 Q Were there notes from previous lifetime 16 don't know what those dates are.
17 supervision officers in that file? 17 Q Okay. There were also periods of tnemployment,
18 A There was. 18 correct?
19 Q Did you avail yourself of that information when 19 A Yes.
20 you became his case manager? 20 @ Now based on those prior case notes, to your
21 A Yes, I looked back at the file. 21 knowledge, he had previously submitted to urinary
22 Q Did you become aware of the fact that he did in 22 analysis, correct?
23 fact have four previous probation officers? 23 A Yes, he did.
24 A Iknow he had previous officers. I did not 24 Q Which is the drug testing that you say he had
25 count the number. 25 refused you?
117 119
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1 A Yes. 1 A1 don't know what happened in the past. 1 don't
2 Q Now based on those prior case notes, 1 am sure 2 know. He could have been. Ido not haveany preof in
3 you are aware that Mr. McNeill was previously put on a 3 front me or a computer to show me hie was at heme or
4 GPS monitoring when he first started his lifetime 4 wasn't at home,
§ supervision? 5 Q Okay. From here onout, when I ask you
6 A 1 was not aware of that, no. 6 questions I mean from the time in which you became his
7 Q You were not aware of that? 7 probation officer.
8 A No. 8 A Since March 20137
] Q Did you ever see any indication in the case 9 Q Yes.
10 notes that he had violated any kind of GPS? 10 A Okay.
11 MR. COOPER: Objection, Your Honor. She was not 11  Q So you previously testified that when you became
12 aware that he was on GPS so how is she going to know if 12 his probation officer, you did what you usually do which
13 heviolated GP3. _ 13  is aulemp to contact the person you are assigned o
14 THE COURT; So the objection is that it's 14  supervise? .
15 outside of this witness' knowledge? 15 A Yes, He is on lifetime supervision.
16 MR. COOPER. It's outside and technically asked 16 Q Didyou try to contact him?
47 and answered in the last qguestion and assumes a fact not 17 A Idid
18 inevidence. 18 Q Andyou said you were you unable to contact him?
19 MS. BONAVENTURE: Well, Your Honor, just because | 19 A Ihelieve I wrote something along the lines of 1
20 she says she doesn't know whether he was on GPS 20 attempted to contact him but was unable by phone te make
24 momitoring doesn't meant that she wouldn't know there is 21  contact with him. I don't know if that meant Igota
22 aviolation as a result of not following the GPS monitor. 22  voice mail or the phone got disconnected. I'm not sure.
23 THE COURT: 1f she knows. Overruled. 23 I just know I'was unable to get ahold of him.
24 THE WITNESS: Ido not know if' he was violated 24 Q At that time did you annotate your notes in the
25 onany GPS system. _ 25 case file saying that you suspected him of being a
120 122
1 BY MS. BONAVENTURE: 4 potential absconder?
2 Q But youdid previously testify that he was never 2 A Yes
i 3 previously violated? 3 Q Can you for the jury's sake explain what an
4 A Idou't recall. I believe I said I donot . 4 absconder is?
. & recall, I don't know if he was or was not. 1 wasonly 5 A Anabsconder is someone who is no longer
6 concerned with what he does under my supervision. 6 reporting as divected by the Parole and Probation Office.
7 Q And so he had been pretty much making most, if 7 Q But when you recall the previous case notes, do
8 not all, of his monthly reports based on those prior case 8 you recall whether or not Mr. McNeill had made his
9 notes? 9 February 2013 appointment which was the month that
10 A He had been showing up submitting monthly 10 immediately predated the month you became his supervising
11  reports. 41 officer?
12 Q And by showing up you mean presenting himself 12 A 1 believe it is but I would not be able te
13 physically at the Department of Parolc and Probation? 13 confirm that without the file in front of me.
14 A Yes 14 Q Would it refresh your recollection to see it?
15 Q So based on the prior case NoLes in the file; 15 A Iwould be able to see the monthly report and
16 somé other supervising officers did in fact conduct house 16 the date onit to see if that is a monthly report with
17 checks, correct? 17 the February date.
18 A Yes, 18 MS. BONAVENTURE: Your Honor, may I approach?
19 Q In fact, I don't know if you know anymore of the 19 " THE COURT: Youmay.
20  details of it, but when they did do some of the house 20 BY MS. BONAVENTURE:
21 calls — is that what you call them? 21 Q Tell me what this is that you are looking at?
22 A Home contact. 22 A Itis 2 mouthly report dated 2/5/2013, Officer
23 Q Home cortact, okay, HC, home contact. Okay. 23 VanDyke. Filled out by Steve McNeill
24 Whenthey did do these house vigits he wasn't always at, 24 Q So this is the month before you became his
25  home, correct? 25 probation officer?
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1 A Yes 1 A 1 could not testify to where he was registered,
2 Q Did he in fact report the month before you 2 only what he is reporting on his monthly report.
3 became his probation officer? ' 3 Q Fair enough,
4 A Hedid. 4 A What was your question again?
5 Q And then in March he did in fact report to you? 5 Q ‘What corner did he put on his monthly report?
6 A Twas surprised by him reporting, but, yes. ] A Tor what month?
7 Q Okay. Andswprised because you had put him 7 Q For the month you were assigned his case?
8 down as an absconder? 8 A March?
9 A No. Because 1 make appointments to sec Iy 9 Q VYes.
10 offenders to come see me $0 they don't show up at the 10 A Tt doesn't say.
11 office andI'm not there, So I make appointments. So 1 11 Q So safe to say it was either one?
12 had no appointment with him for March. : 12 A Either one of those two. He reports the same
13 Q Did you go look for him at this point? 13 thing ¢very time.
14 A Imight have. Imight have tried to drive by. 14 Q  So this was the report [ had shown you
15 1 don't know for a fact. 15 previously, the February repoit?
16 Q If you had gone out would you have annotated 16 A Yes.
17  your notes? 17 Q So this is the February report that you had
18 A Yes 18 looked at before. This is the one that the gupervising
19 Q Did you review that file before you came in here 19  officer before you had seen and this would have been
20 today? 20 information you had going in to his case, correct?
21 A It would be on my computer. IU's called a 21 A Yes. Colorado and Main.
22  ehrone list” Soifl reviewed the chrono list T would 22 Q Thank you. Sohewas registered ai Colorado and
29 geeif I did try to make phone contact. 23 Main, correct?
24 Q IfIshowed you the chrono list would you be 24 A No. Iwould not say he was registered --
25 ableto look at it? 25 Q I'msorry. [keep confusing the words. Thank
124 126
1 A Yes, detinitely, 1 you. He wasreporting that his residence was at that
2 MS. BONAVENTURE: If I may approach, Your Honor. 2 intersection?
3 THE COURT: You may. 3 A Yes, he was.
4 BY MS BONAVENTURE: 4 Q And he reported the intersection at the
5 " @ [Imow it might take a second as to the dates. 5 direction ofhis previous PO, correct?
6 It isnoteasy toread. € A 1 can'tspeak to what they discussed or I do not
7 4. A Looks like March 26th attempted to reach him by 7 know anything about what happened before I was his PO
8 phoneand was unsuccessful. 8 really.
9 Q Now does it say anything about you conducting a 9 Q Okay. Would that information have been put into
10  potential home contact? 10 astatement?
11 A 1do not seeit on here. 1 think this should 11 A If the officer put it in, yes.
12 have enly been one page. 12 Q Sohe is reporting to the Department of Parole
13 Q So you did not attempt a home contact al that 43  and Probation an intersection because he is, homeless
14 point? ' 14 corect?
15 A 1did not. 15 A Y.
16 Q But then he showed up in March? 16 Q And he does that because homeless people are
17 A Hedid. 17 required by law to-register, if they did not have a fixed
18 Q Do you remember where he was registered? 18  address to register at a corner closest to where they
19 A 1did not check the sex offender registry at 19  habitally sleep, correct?
20 that moment. 20 A Y.
21 Q 1am talking about in the monthly report that he 21 Q Sonow let's turn to your preliminary hearing
22  was submitting to the Department of Parole and Probation. 22  testimony because that is very curious (o me.
23 Maybe this will help you recall. 23 A Okay.
24 Do you recall him being registered at the cormner 24 Q Mr. Cooper brought it up on direct, and you did
25 of Main and Colorado? ' 25  in fact testify at preliminary hearing, I asked you, I
125 127
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1 was like, Officer Mangan, did Mr. McNeill ever provide 1 A Yes.
2 youa map specifically indicating where he sleeps? 2 Q And then you received a monthly report from
3 A 1remember that. 3 Mr. McNeill in July?
4 Q And you said, No, he never drew me a map? 4 A Yes,
5 A Yes. 1did say no. 5 Q So by July - and July 11 is the date that you
6 Q Which, like T said, is very curious because 6 arrested him for violations of lifetime supervision?
7 everybody did previously see these maps? 7 A I did
8 A They did. 8 Q Andso by July you had only seen him three or
9 Q There is not just one map, but there's two maps? 9 met with him prior three times, correct?
10 THE COURT: Counsel, for our record, if you are 10 A Mareh, June, April -- June, so July that would
11  going to publish, can you identify which proposed or 11 be four times.
12  admitted exhibit that is. 12 Q 1 belicve the monthly reports indicate that you
13 MS. BONAVENTURE: Absolutely. Thisis the 13 met with him March -- ,
14 State's Exhibil 6. And this is the monthly report that 14 A Oh,are you speaking of the other officer?
15 e submitted for April 12th of 2013, So there was this 15 Q Yes.
16 one map. And not only was there one map, there were two 16 A Yes.
17 maps. Buteverybody did in fact sec that map. 17 Q March, April and May?
18 THE COURT: And that is State's exhibit - 18 A Yes,
19 MS. BONAVENTURE: This is State’s Exhibit 7. 19 Q Not June?
20 BY MS.BONAVENTURE: 20 A Okay.
21 Q So suffice it to say that not just one but ftwo 21 Q And then youmet him again in July?
22 maps existed and you had no recollection of that at 22 A Yes
23 preliminary hearing? 23 Q Okay. And July is the monthly reporting date
24 A Right. Without my monthly report I could not 24 that you arrested him?
25 reeall ifhe had drawn me a map or not, 25 A Hefilled out his monthly report on July 11th.
128 130
1 Q In fact based on your own case notes I believe 1 He came in the office. We talked and I arrested him.
2 you annotated that not only were the maps drawn but you 2 Q And like you testified earlier, nothing came of
3 and Mr. McNeill looked it up Google earth. 3 those charges?
4 A Ipuiled up Google carth on my computer, yes. 4 A No,
5 Q Where he indicated to you on Google earth where 5 Q He was released from custody?
6 he says he sleeps at night? 8 A Hewas. :
7 A Yes. 7 Q Soyouarrested him on July 11th and then he
8 Q Vet you had no recollection of that at 8 reported to you in August, correct?
9 preliminary hearing? 9 A Hedid.
10 A 1believe the question was of him drawing me a 10 Q Hereported to you on August 19th to be exact?
11 map not whether I looked up a map on my ¢win on Google |11 A That was a typo. The actual physical date he
12 earth, 12 reportedison 8/15. I entered it in the computer on
13 Q You made no mention of that at preliminary 13 §/19 and that's where I got that date from.
14 hearing? 14 Q) Soyou entered - it Was a typo that you entered
15 A 1was not asked that question. 15 into the computer?
16 Q Okay. Mr. McNeill report toed you in March of 18 A Ttismnota typo. It is just -- so he comes fn
17 2013. He reported to you in April of 2013. He reported 17 on the 16th and I see him. But lets say that wasa
18 to youin March of 2013 - 18 Thursday, so that was my Friday. I come back on Monday
19 A May, yes. 19 and I would enter when it happened. So on the computer,
20 Q Yes, I meant May. And you had said on direct 20 it puts in that date, which would have been the 19th,
21 that some other officer was his officer for the month of 21 Q Okay. :
22 June? : 22 A Sowhen I am lpoking at the computer it will say
23 A Yes. Ibelieve Office White was his officer. I 23 §/19 this is what happened, this is what I saw when it
24 wasn't transferred. I don't know if it was May or June. 24 actually it occurred on the 15th,
25 Q 1t was sandwiched right in there, yeah. 25 Q And I see corroborating proof of that, In fact
129 131
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1  this is State's Exhibit 10, and right here you can see - 1 Department of Parole and Probation that day?
2 the report date that Mr. McNeill himself wrote down was 2 A THedid.
3 . August 15th? 3 Q So you testified on direct that you never heard
4 A Yes. 4 from Mr. McNeill again?
5 Q So the computer eror was because of a typo? 5 A 1saw the letter he sent but I don't recall ever
6 A Ientered the information on a different date 6 having a conversation with him.
7 then the 15th. 7 Q Right. Younever saw hirm again, you never had
8 Q Got it. Okay. So on August 15th you testified 8 any verbal or telephone communication with him?
9  on direct that he came in, you asked him to take urinary 9 A No, Idon't believe so.
10 analysis test and he flat out refused? 10 Q So the only indication of his existence that you
11 A Yes. 11 got was a cease and desist letter?
12 Q Did you at any point hand him a cup to, for lack 12 A Yes.
13 of a betier word, pee in? 13 MS. BONAVENTURE: May I approach, Your Honor?
14 A Tdon't believe we would have got that far. 1 14 THE COURT: You may.
15 don't recall having a cup in my hand or anything like 15 BY MS. BONAVENTURE:
16 that. I don't think I had a cup and I'm not sure how 16 Q s this 2 true and accurate representation of
17 that makes a differcnce, 17  the cease and desist letter you were shown in reference
18 Q Soyou don't remember whether or not you gave 18 toMr. McNeill?
19 himacup? 19 A 1 believe it is.
20 A Idon't 20 Q You had testified on direct that the basic gist
21 Q And then you said you took him directly to 21  ofitis he is telling Parole and Probation don’t contact
22  Officer Zana's office? 22 me?
23 A Itook him to my supervisor, Sergeant Zana. 23 A To cease and desist contact with him.
24 Q Sergeant Zana, sorry, who is your supervisor? 24 Q Any and all contact in fact?
25 A Yes, heis. 25 A Yes.
132 134
1 Q So at that point you overheard a conversation 1 THE COURT: Ms, Bonaventurs, if you want to
2 between Sergeant Zann and Mr. McNeill? 2 discuss the document substantively. 1don't have a
3 A T wasin theroom as they were speaking. 3 problem with as long as it has been admitted. Do you
4 Q So you overheard a conversation? 4 seek to move to admit it?
5 A Yes. 5 MS. BONAVENTURE: Yes, Your Honor,
6 Q And so you said that you overheard them have a 6 THE COURT: We have marked it now as Defense's
7 conversation about the curfew? 7 Exhibit Proposed A. Any objection?
8 A Yes: 8 MR. COOPER; No, Your Honor.
9 Q Wherein somehody wented to put him on a curfew? 9 THE COURT: No, then, Defense Proposed A is
10 A Well, he had to abide by his curfew. 10 admitted and you may publish.
11 Q Okay. And you said that he had flat out 11 (Whereupon, Defendant's Exhibit A was
12 refused? 12 admitted into evidence.)
13 A Herefused to be placed on a curfew. 13 MS. BONAVENTURE: Thank you.
14 Q So acurfew was niever sel? 14 BY MS. BONAVENTURE:
15 A "Well, his old curfew would still be in effect 15 Q Sothe first couple of pages are the actual
16 unless Isaid this curfesy is no longer in effect, which I 16 notice of the cease and desist letter, right?
17 never did. 17 A 1 am not really familiar with these kind of
18 Q Okay. Soanew curfew was never set? On August 18 letters. Ijust read it over. But I am not familiar
19  15th no new curfew was set? 19 with what this entails,
20 A No new curfew. 20 Q Iwould put it here just so that the jury can
21 Q And you did not arrest him that day, correct? 21  see what we are looking at.
22 A Ididnot. 22 A Okay.
23 Q Sergeant Zana did not arrest him that day? 23 Q So at the top, can se¢ that this is cease and
24 A No. 24  desist in resirictions and harassments, correct?
25 Q By all accounts M, MeNeill walked out of the 25 A That's what it says.
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1 Q Okay. And so was this included in the letter ' 1 gets filed with the court which is why there is a stamp
2 that you saw that day? 2 there?
3 A Tbelieve it was. 3 A Yes.
4 Q It is a commercial affidavit open verification 4 Q And it's fair to say it's filed on that date,
5 from Steve McNeill, correct, as part of his cease and 5 the 14th?
6 desist letter? 6 A Yes
7 A It came in the mail, that's all I know. 7 Q Thank you very much. And so the preliminary
8 Q And also here is included a UCC financing 8 hearing transeript that we had earlier alluded to, you
9 statement; was that included in the packet? 9 testified then that the reason you waited so long or the
10 A It was included in the letter. 10 reason it took so long was that you were atlempting to
1 Q Letier, okay. And then this also, an affidavit 11 contact Mr. McNeill?
12 of political status. ' 12 A That was part of the reason, yes.
13 A I believe it was included in the letter. 13 Q And you even testified on direct that you said
14 Q Looks Like it is signed by Mr, Steven Dell 14 you made atlemps ¢ drive by the location he had
15 McNeill 15 previously reported?
16 A Yes. 16 A Yes
17 Q So this was in fact an accurate representation 17  Q Andto make phone calls?
18 of the actual cease and desist letter? 18 A Yes
19 A Tt appears so, yes. 19 Q If you had done those would you have annotated
20 Q You previously testified the last time you saw 20 them in your case notes?
21 him was August 15,2013? 21 A They should be noted.
22 A Yes. 22 Q Do you remember the dates that you made these
23 Q You received -- do you remember what day you 23 calls?
24 received the cease and desist letter? 24 A 1 do not remember the dates.
25 A I did not receiveit. My sergeant showed it to 25 Q IfI were to show you your case notes would you
136 138
1 me on 8/29/13, around that time. It was laier August 1 be able to refresh your recollection?
2 that hehad known me the letter that the captain had 2 A Yes,
3 received. 3 Q Please take your time in looking at that and let
4 Q So alittle bit after your last meeting with 4 me know if you see any notes of any calls or any visits
5 him? ' 5 made to contact Mr, McNeill between the dates of
6 A Yes. 6 August 2013 to March 2013 related to the charges in this
7 Q And so you never heard from him again? 7 case.
8 A Ididnot. 8 THE COURT: You mean March 2014.
9 Q Now the charges you filed in this cage -- you ] MS. BONAVENTURE: Ido.
40 filed that report with the alleged charges in this case 10 THE WITNESS: February 27, 2014, I tried to look
11 in March of 2014, correct? ' 11 for the subject in alley and cross streets of Main and
12 A Can I see - I believe so. 1know I started 12 Wyoming. Subject was not observed. And then the same
143 that December, I started writing the new charges then 13 day I continued my surveillance between Main and Wyoming.
14 and there was a series of corrections that happened and 14 [ drove around multiple alleys and roads on or near
15 then it was sent to the DA and it comes back with, We 15 Colorado and Las Vegas Boulevard, Wyoming, Commerce,
16 want more information. They sent it back, so it was kind |16 Utah, Thatis the only thing I see.
17 of like a back and forth process. But I believe I 17 Q Between those two dates?
18 started writing the charges in December, which should be |18 A Yes,
19 noted on there, o 19 Q So your case notes they only reflect that you
20 Q So itactually got filed -- here it is, Does 20 made one attempt to go down to try to locate Mr, MeNeill
21 that look familiar? 21 in February, correct?
22 A Well, this is part of it. It's not my complete 22 A Correct.
23 packet, but it is part of it. It was finally approved by 23 Q February 27th?
24 my sergeant on 3/10/14, 24 A Correct,
25 Q So that is the day that it goes to -- when it |25 Q And there were no case notes that you could find
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1 that you made any calls? 4 ordered him to return to sex offender counseling?
2 A Yt was not written down, no. 2 A 1did
3 Q Okay. And just to clarify because I know all 3 Q Specifically you called Marcia Lee?
4 these dates getconfusing to us and they get confusing 4 A To get reenrolled in counseling,
5 for our jury members. So you were never able to find him 5 Q Yes. Did you ever yourself just catt Marcia
6 at the corners he had registered al, correct? 6 Lee?
7 A T never personally saw him at Main and Wyoming, 7 A I amsure wespoke. [don't know the date or
8 yeah. 8 time.
9 Q You did not see him there while he was reporting 9 MS. BONAVENTURE: No mare questions, Your Honor.
10 1o you, correct? 10 Thank you.
11 A 1 didnot, 11 THE COURT: Mr. Cooper, any redirect?
12 Q And you never saw him there after? 12 MR. COOPER: No, Your Honor.
13 A Right, 13 THE COURT; I gave the instructions yesterday so
14 Q Okay. Now I know we touched upon this in the 14 hopefully the jurors will remember that we give the
15  preliminary hearing a little bit, but one of the theories 15  opportunity for the jurors to ask questions of the
16 ofthe State's case is he was failing to cooperate with 16 witness. May I see by a show of hands if any of you have
47  you, his lifelire supervision olficer. 17  any questions for this witness. Seeingno hands 1
18 Now, so that hasically means not cooperating 18 believe you are excused, Officer. You may exit the
19  with you, he is not abiding by the terms of his 19 courtroom:.
20 supervision, correct? 20 (Witness exits the courtraom.)
21 A Can I actually read what cooperation says under 21 THE COURT: Okay, 1 think this would be & good
22  his Lifetime Supervision Agrecment to better recollect? 22  time to take a break, ten minutes.
23 Q Okay. Here you go. 23 During the recess, you are admonished not to
24 A Cooperation: You shall at all times cooperate 24 1alk or converse among yourselves or with anyone else on
25  with your supervising officer and behavior should justify 25  any subject connected with the trial or read, watch or
140 142
1 the opportunity granted to you by this lifetime 1 listen to any report of or commentary on the trial or any
2 supervision. 2 person connected with the trial by any medium of
3 Q Okay. So now a violation of that clause would 3 information including without limitation newspaper,
4  be violating your lifetime supervision? 4  television, radio, Internet or social media of any kind,
5 A Yes 5 orto form or express any opinion on any subject
6 Q So what you had said earlier you said he refused 6 connected with the triaf until the case is finally
7 urinary analysis, correct? 7 submitted to you.
8 A Yes. 8 THE COURT; We'li have to take some time to put
9 Q And so that is part and parcel of his failing to 9 on the record the bench conferences that we have had
10 cooperate, right? 10 today -- to the extent that [ can remember them.
11 A I would think so, yes. 11 MR. COOPER: There was 3 multilude of them.
12 Q By just making that one violation. It is not 12 {Whereupon, a recess was taken.)
13 just one violation for refusing to do the urinary 13 THE COURT: Now that he have all the jurors
14 analysis, but it's actually two violations because it 14 present we will have ask the State for their next
15  violates not just having to do the urinary analysis, but 15  witness.
16 itis also a violation of not cooperating with the 16 MR, COOPER: Sergeant Zana.
17  lifetime supervision? 17
18 A It seems to be the case, yes. 18  Whersupon,
19 Q So kind of like atwofer; two violations -- 19 BRIAN ZANA,
20 A It'sin there and I can violate on it. 20 was administered the following oath by the court clerk.
21 Q Okay. Thatis fine. So partof the State's 21 THE CLERK: You do solemnly swear that the
22 theory of the case is also thathe was terminated from 22 testimony you give in this action shaii be the truth, the
23  sex offender counseling, correct? 23 whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God.
24 A Hewas. 24 THE WITNESS: 1do.
25 Q AndI know that you testified that you had 25 THE CLERK: Please state and spell your full
141 143
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guidance. We call it kind of like the "come to Jesus

1 name for the record. 1

2 THE WITNESS: Brian Zana, B-ri-a-n, Z-a-n-a. 2 meeting" to give them one last opportunity to comply

3 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. You may be seated. 3 usually, Officer Mangan came into my office and said

4 Mr. Cooper, whenever you are ready. 4  that she had Mr. McNeill at her desk and would it be all

5 MR. COOPER: Thank you, Your Honor. 5 right if she brought him in for me to have a talk with

6 6 him and I told her of course it would be fine.

7 DIRECT EXAMINATION 7 Q Do you remember the actua! date of that?

8 BY MR. COOPER: 8 A August 15th,

9 Q Mr. Zana, how are you currently emnployed? Q And what happened at that point when he came in
10 A 1am a sergeant with the Department of Public your office?
11 Safety Division of Parole and Probation. 11 A He came into my office, 1listened to him and
12 Q How long have you been employed with the 12  he was complaining about how Officer Mangan wanted to put
13 Division of Parole and Probation? 13 him on weekly reporting and he said that, Well, I am only
14 A Nearly 16 years, 14 reporting to her once a month as a courtesy to her now
15 Q How long have you been a sergeant? 15 and 1 explained to him that the law required him to
16 A Six years. 16 report as instructed by his officer,
17 Q What particular area or assignment are you as a 17 We got into a little back and forth quoting
18 sergeant? 18 NRS's and 1 explained to him that he's going to have to
19 A For the past three years 1 have been assigned to 19  abide by the conditions of his agreement.
20 the sex offender umit, 20 He continued to go back and forth with me about
21 Q I want to turn your attention specifically to 21  how he would report when he wanted to report and we
22  August of 2013; do you recall this time period? 22  discussed other issues, such as his residence where he
23 A Yes, 23 was living and Otficer Mangan had ditficulty finding him
24 Q And during this time period, did you have an 24 there. And at that point he said, Weil, I'll live where
25 occasion to meet anyone that you recognize here in court? 25 [ want to Jive, and I'm not going to be a dogon a

144 146

1 A Yes. 1 leash.

2 Q Can you please point to that person and describe 2 Q Did he say anything to you in relation to

3  something they are wearing. 3 whether or not he is taking a urinaiysis?

4 A The person who is wearing a khaki shir¢ with a 4 A Officer Mangan had reported to me that he would

5 checkered black and green tie. 5 not take a urinalysis.

6 MR. COOPER: May the record reflect the 6 Q And specifically during your conversation with

7 identification of the defendant, Y cur Honor. ‘ 7 him -- how ¢id that conversation end?

8 THE COURT; The record will so reflect. 8 A Basically, I could tell he just wanied to be

¢ BY MR. COOPER: 9 argumentative. There was no reason to continue the
10 Q Are you familiar with what's called a Lifetime 10 banter back and forth. Iexplained to him that he would
11 Supervision Agreement? 11  be required to follow the conditions of his Lifetime
12 A Yes 12 Supervision Agreement and follow the rules that are set
13 Q And what is that agreemeni? 13 forth by hisofficer. And if he didn't report as
14 A The Lifetime Supervision Agreement is an 14 instructed and do what he was explained to do, that a
15 agreement created under NRS 213.1243 outlining the 15 warrant would issue for hirm.
16 conditions of the lifetime supervision offender’s 16 Q MNow, at some point after August 15th, 2013, did
17 supervision. : 17 you have occasion to receive a leticr or anything of that
18 Q And fo your knowledge was the defendant under a 18 nature?
19 Lifetime Supervision Agreement in August of 20137 19 A Yes, I did.
20 A Yes, he was, 20 Q What did this letter entail?
21 Q Now, can you describe how you came in contact 21 A 1wascalled up on 1 believe it was August 29th,
29 with him and what happened as a result of that contact? 22 my captain called me up to his office and said that he
23 A My officers routinely when they have issues with 23 had received a certified letter from Mr. McNeill and he
24  some of their offenders will ask to bring an offender in 24 was confused as to why he was receiving it. T reviewed
25 to speak with me so I can kind of give them a little more 25 the letter and it appeared to be kind of 2
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1 self-generating cease and desist letter, 1 MR. COOPER: Thank you. No further questions,
2 MR. COOPER: Permission to publish, Your Honor. 2 Your Honor.
3 THE COURT: You may. 3 THE COURT: Ms. Bonaventure.
4 BY MR.COOPER: 4
5 Q This is Defendant's Exhibit A; is this that 5 CROSS-EXAMINATION
6 letter that you were talking about? 6 BY MS.BONAVENTURE:
7 A Yes, that looks like it is. 7 Q Officer Zana, you said that Officer Mangan told
8 Q And when you received this letter did you 8 youthat he refused a UA?
9 forward it on to your supervisor or other individuals? 9 A That's correct. When she came in and asked it |
10 A The captain advised me to forward it to our 10 would talk to him.
11 deputy AG that represents this case. 7 11 Q And UA meaning urinary analysis?
12 Q And based on all the information you received, 12 A That's correct.
13 did you continue to supervise the defendant? 13 Q Didyoueverask himto doa UA?
14 A Yes, we did, 14 A No,Idid not.
i5 Q To your knowledge, that letter had no baring on 15 @ Younever handed him a cup or anything?
16 your ability to I guess follow a court order and 16 A No,1did not.
17 supervise him? 17 Q You testified that he refused to be putona
i8 A None whatsoever. 18  curfew?
19 Q Now, during your conversation with him in your 19 A That's correct.
20 office, do you recall any other statements he might have 20 Q Was a curfew ever set that day - on August 16th
21 made fo you or anything of that nature in relation to if 21 did you set a curfew for him?
22 he was going to show back up or if he thought that you 22 A No. Officer Mangan would have set one. 1do
23 . guys should be - 23 ot micromanage my officers.
24 MS. BONAVENTURE: Your Honor, [ am goingto |24 Q Okay. Now are there any situations in which you
25 object. This is leading al this point. Where is the 25 make annotations to the case notes for a particular
148 150
1 question? 1 person on lifetime supervision?
2 MR, COOPER: I can rephrase or [ can say it 2 A T Tgeta phone call from a counseclor or a
3 again because that question is not leading. 3 family member or the offender themselves, if 1 get a
4 THE COURT: 1will sustain and ask you to 4 phone call or something like that without the officer
5 rephrase. [ think the question was did you remember any 5 present I will make a notation in the CODIS system.
6 other comments made by the defendant and that would ] Q Do you ever remember annotating Mr. McNeill's
7 suffice. 7 file?
g8 BY MR. COOPER: 8 A Onwhich day?
9 Q Do you remember any other comments made by the 9 Q Any day.
10 defendant? 10 A Yes. When I review a crime report, warrant
11 A During our conversation he had stated in our 11 request, it's routine that I put in there that 1 reviewed
12 banter back and forth about NRS, he was quoting NRS and |12 it, if there needed to be some corrections or additions I
13 stating that he wasn't required to register with sex 13 would make notcs that that necds to be done and send to
14 offenders, he wasn't require to report to us. I, of 14 the officer to be done.
15 course, was gquoting NRS 176.0931 that clearly states 15 And then once a report would be finalized and it
16 that, you know, lifetime supervision is where these 23 16 was acceptable then I would put another chronological
17 most egregious offenses passed the law on Qctober 1st, 17 entry noting that it was accepted and sent to the officer
18 1995, 18 and forwarded to the District Attorney's Oftice,
19 After the banter, I decided that he was Just 19 something like that.
20 going to want to continue to argue. I had explained to 20 Q Do you recall particularly in this case making
24 him that he would report as instructed by his officer. 21 an annotation on June 12thof 20137
22  And at that point he said that he wasn't going to be 22 A 1 do not remember specifically.
23 coming in. And I told him, Well, if you don't comply, if 23 Q IfI showed you the chron notes in this case
24 you don't report, if don't do what you are ordered to do, - |24 would that help refresh your memory?
25 then there will be a warrant issued. 25 A Yes,
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1 MS. BONAVENTURE: May I approach, Your Honor? | 1 I hope nobody has any difficulty with that
2 THE COURT: Yes. 2 slight adjustment to the start time. Otherwise, [ do
3 BY MS. BONAVENTURE: 3 need Lo admonish you during this overnight recess, you
4 ' Q Andare these the chron notes? 4 are admonishad not to talk or converse among yourselves
5 A Right. 5  or wilh anyone else on any subject connected with the
6 Q Okay. And what was that (indicating)? 6 trial or read, watch or listen to any report of or
7 A "HC" refers to home contact, 7 commentary on the trial or any pérson conmected with the
] Q What does the note actually say? 8 trial by any medium of information including without
9 A The note says that -- 9 limitation newspaper, television, radio, Internet of
10 MR, COOPER: Your Honor, I have to object at 10 social media of any kind, or to form or express any
11 thispoint. She was justrefreshing his recollection. 11 opinion on any subject connected with the trial until the
12 THE COURT: That's fine. 12 case is finally submitted to you.
13 Da you have a question for him, Ms. Bonaventure, 13 (Fury exits the courtroom.)
14 regarding his memory? 14 THE COURT: So I gave youmy card that had my
15 MS. BONAVENTURE: Sure. 15  e-mail address where T can receive the jury imstructions,
16 BY MS.BONAVENTURE: 46 1think the earliest | would probably be able to work on
17 Q Has this refreshed your memory? 17 it would be after 9:00 tonight sononeed to rush it.
18 A Yes, it has. 18 MR. COOPER: Allright, Thank you, Your Honor.
19 Q On June 12, 2013 what annotation did you make? 19 THE COURT: I want o try my best to put into
20 A Tt was a chrono discussing the need for a home 20  the record those key bench conferences that we have had
21 contact on Mr, McNeill, 21 throughout the course foday. A number of them took place
22 Q Specifically because one had not been done? 22 during opening statements, but [ am actually going to
23 A She was unable to get a home contact on him. 23 start with the bench conferences that occurred when
24 Q And it was high priority? 24 Officer Mangan was on the stand.
25 A Absclutely. 25 Wehave already addressed the objection that was
' 162 154
1 Q Sothe file was returned to her to get that home 1 made when Officer Mangan testified what was State's
2 contact? 2 Proposed and is now State's Exhibit 2, the Lifetime
3 A Absolutely. 3 Supervision Agreement that was signed while the defendant
4 MS. BONAVENTURE: Okay. Great. No mor¢ 4 was incarcerated and was what prompted us to actually
5 questions, Your Honor. Thank you. 5 excuse the jury.
6 THE COURT; Any redirect? 6 And we have already put in the record with
7 MR, COOPER: No, Your Honar, 7 regard to the request for a mistrial and those
8 THE COURT: Allvight. May I see by a show of 8 circumstances. 1 just wanted to invite to see if anybody
9 hands if any jurors have any questions for this witness, 9  had anything further o add in the record on that before
10 Seeing none, Sergeant Zana, you are excused. 10 I then go back to the other bench conferences that I
11 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 11 noted.
12 THE COURT:; Earlier I had determined with 12 MS, HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor, We had also
13 counsel that we would conclude with those witnesses today 13 objected and then at the bench further elaborated on our
14 atfor around 5:00, and it is just after 5:00, so we kept 14 objection that the State's Exhibit 2 that was admitted,
15 it pretty close Lo the anticipaled tme frame. 1do need 15 we werc objecting Lhal it was a fugitive document because
16 to inform you, though, that yesterday when we were trying 16 it was not a document that was signed while the defendant
17 to determine what our schedule would be for today and for 17 was on lifetime supervision. It was not a document --
i8 tomorrow, I had indicated the start time for today and 18 essentially, it was a document that was signed while he
19 then anticipaled perhaps a 1,00 start time for tomorrow. 186 was still incarcerated prior fo his sentence, -
20 We actually have a witness of the States that we need to 20 And our objection was essentially the terms of
21 accommodate their schedule and needs to come in fomorTow 21  lifetime supervision are fairly clear in the statute. A
22 at11;00, so T'will ask you to return here tomorrow at 22 term of supervision does not begin until all other
23 11:00. We will take a lunch break at the normal time and 23  sentences have expired, That includes parole and
24 then conclude with the remainder of the trial in the 24 probation and incarceration.
25 normal course. ' 25 THE COURT: And your basis for -- you use the
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1 term "fugitive document” and I have to be honest, at the 1 the day, there is a point in time when someone is
2 time at the bench, and you used it again now, it doesn't 2 releasing from incarceration and they get their stuff,
3 really resonate with me. Ihave a very specific idea of 3 they sign something and they walk out the door. So
4 what, to me, a fugitive document is, but that doesn't 4 presumably it co